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months before then.

Q Ckay. So in spring of 20097

A That might be reasonable.
0 Ckay .
A It was —— because initially it was —— I wes

contacted by a law firm in Los Angeles who was coing some of
the work for the Bernstein grcup, because 1t was the
Washington case.

0 And you have testified —— well, strike that.

What were you specifically retained to do in the Michael

v—

Washington case?

————
-

A Well, initially it was supposed to be for a

medical melpractice suit. That's all.

Q Okay. Did it become something else?

A It became a product liability case.

Q So you were retained. Were there two seperate
lawsuits filed, one for medical malpractice, one for products
PI liability?

A Well, that was —— the initial was for that. But
then it quickly generated into the product liability.

“ Q So the medical malpractice case went away?

" A I —— I was never in any Jjury trial that hed
anything to do with the medical malpractice. But the initial
deposition was for that.

Q Were vyou in a jury trial for the products

” KARR REPORTING, INC.
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liability case?

A For Michael Washington?

Q Yes.

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. And —- anc what were ycu retained to

testify about in that case? I mean, what were you an expert
qualified to testify in that case about?

A Tt was about things that to some degree we have
discussed today. What the —- what a anesthesia practice is,
what aseptic technique is, what safe injection practices are,
appropriate use of propofol, those were some of the primary
reasons.

Also, when, in terms of 50 and 20 cc vials and what
that might have -- where that came into all this. Because we
cnly use 50 cc vials in a critical care unit, an intensive
care unit. We use it no other place in our hospital. And a
lot of that had to do with the safety issues that have come up

in this cease.

Q and these were specific to the product liability
case?

A That's correct.

0 You weren't retained, or in fact you didn't

opine, give an opinion as to the mechanism of transmission of
the disease in that case; is that correct?

A That is correct. I — 1 deferred to the CDC and

KARR REPORTING, INC.
192

007335




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

the Southern Nevada Health -- their final investigation
report.
0 And, in fact, in order to have been able to give
| a opinion, expert opinion, you'd have to be an epidemioclogist,
correct?
| A That 1s correct.
Q And you are not that?
Il A I am not an epidemiologist.
" Q I need to know a little bit more about you. In
llthese cases, you testified on behalf of plaintiffs, correct?
| A No, sir.
| Q On these cases that we just identified? Have

|
r you ever received any compensation directly or indirectly from

a manufacturer of propofol?
fl A No, sir.
h Q Do you remember a study that you were involved
in --
I A Oh
Q —— in San Francisco?
P A Yes. I —- I take thet back. That is correct.
Q You have received compensation from

manufacturers of propofol indirectly, correct?
P A That's correct. That was way back before any of

rlthis transpired.

FI
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have you ever been sued for mecical malpractice?

A

The only time that it has ever come up was for a

dental injury that occurred. Other than that 1 have never

been sued.

Q

malpractice?

A

Q

A

Okay. Were vou ever sued for medical

For medical malpractice?
Yes, sir.

Well, I guess if you call that suit a medical

malpractice suit, then I would have been.

Q

there not?

=T © R

Q

Well, there was a lawsuilt filed against you, was

Yeah, for a dental injury. That's what I said.
Are you a centist?
I am not a dentist.

Okay. You were sued for a dental malpractice

case as an anesthesiologist?

A

I was —- they initiated & proceeding to sue;

that's correct.

Q

A
Q
A
Q

And you were a named party, a named defendant?
That's correct.

And you settled that case for money?

That is correct.

Prior to these lawsuits that we've identified

ﬁ regarding hep-C here in Clark County, Nevada, had you ever
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testified or worked on a case involving propofol?

A Not that I can remember.

o) Prior to these cases where you identified in
Clark County, had you ever testified in any proceedincs
regarding hep-C outbkreaks?

A Not that I remember.

Q Have you ever been employed as an expert in a
case involving the outbreak of blood-borne pathogens?

A None that I remember.

Q Do you have any background that would make you
an expert in infectious disease?

A No, sir.

) You are not an expert in hepatitis C, correct?

A That is correct.

Q You're not an expert in the treatment of
hepatitis C, correct?

A That is correct.

o) You've never worked with CRNAs in an ambulatory

surgical center, correct?

A That 1s correct.

Q You're not an expert in gastrcenterology,
correct?

A That is correct.

Q You don't do any treatment of hepatitis C,
correct?
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A That is correct.

MR. SANTACROCE: I den't think I have anything else
for him.

THE COURT: 11 right. Thank you. Mr. Staucaher.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q Did the State ask you about any of those items?
Were you ever brought 1n and asked questions about those for
the State?

A I have been eskec befcre in -- you mean, one of

the other previous —

Q No, this case. Eave you ever been asked —-
A No.
Q —— about -- askec to come in and testify about

hepatitis C and —-
No.

-—— epidemiociogy —-—

— anythinc like that?

No, sir.

LGOI - G ©

Matter of fact, the only questions 1've asked
you today relate to your practice as an anesthesiologist?
A That is correct.
Q Is that fair?

A That is correct.
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Q Now, you were asked scme questions about the

Il dental malpractice case. I mean, is that a common issue with

anesthesiologists?

MR. SANTACROCE: I'm going to object as to
foundetion. What's common, what is he even talking about? Is
what a common situation?

THE COURT: Yeah, that's sustained.

MR. STAUDAHER: A direct issue. It was —- well...

THE COURT: You can rephrase the question.

MR. STAUDAHER: 1'll rephrase it.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q Dental issues with anesthesioclogists, is that
something that you take care in when you do procedures? Watch
the dentition, the —- the teeth of patients?

" THE COURT: Well, walt & minute. Were you performing
anesthesiology for a dental procedure or an oral surgery, or
was there a dental injury as a result of something that
" cccurred in another type of a surgery?

THE WITNESS: This was & gentleman who was coming for
a corcnary artery bypass graft. He had an anaphylactic

reacticn to a drug. During the attempt at —-—

THE COURT: The intubation?
THE WITNESS: —- lifesaving, I had to emergently

intubate him, and I also had to push epinephrine. He had

dental injuries that occurred from that. And we settled it.
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His life was saved. And he ended up having a good result

" except for the new dental work that had to be done.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

" 0 You were asked about this provider, I mean, ad
nauseem about this provider educaticn —-

A Right.

Q -— thing. Do I understand you correctly that
your reading of that paragraph regarding multiple use had to
do with what you consider —- you —- you named three of them, I
think, was the chemotherapy drugs, the radic —-

A Pharmaceutical .

Q —— pharmaceuticals and so forth. Those are very
high ccst drugs —-

And the ——

—— but that's what you believed that was sbout?

- O T

And the bioclogical, which was the Botox.

o) Okay. And you think that that paracraph has to
do with propofol?

A Absolutely not.

o) Okay. So when you say that it's unsafe
injection practice as related to propcfol, is that what you're
talking about? I mean, that that is unsafe if it's used to —-—
for propofol?

A That is correct.

Q Now, one of the other things. What size
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syringes do you typically use when you use a 20 cc bottle of
Ipropofol?

A A 20 cc syringe.

Q So when counsel was asking you cuestions about
the drawing up of this —- of the —-- the various bottles, when

you heave & 20, would you use a 20 cc syringe?

Yes.

o>

Q Why would you dc that?

A Because I don't have to worry about ever having
to ¢o ahead and using it in the bolus fashion, ever have to go
back into a vial which could be contaminated, that's number
cre.

Number two, I never have to worry about wastage,

because I always waste from the syringe if anything is left

cver. That leaves nothing on my cart between cases, which
leaves nothing that I could even possibly contaminate the next
patient that I take care of.

Q Did you know when you were asked some questions
abcut this specific cases in this particular case that we're
i, I'm talking about the individuals like Michael Washington
and Patty —- those people that the counsel asked you about,
did you heve a knowledge that the clinic used 10 cc¢ syringes
| cnly fer anesthesia?

A I believe that that's what I had read in —

MR. SANTACROCE: 1I'm going to object to outside the

" KARR REPORTING, INC.

199

007342




[

N

W

IS

o

N

~J

co

O

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Cross.

MR. STAUDAHER: Actually, it doesn't —-—

THE COURT: State your question —-- state your
question again.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q Did he know that only 10 cc syringes were used?

A Did he, meaning —— whc's he?

Q You, did you know?

A Okay. That's what I read ——

MR. SANTACROCE: Cbjection. Still —-

THE COURT: No. Well, overruled.

THE WITNESS: What?

THE COURT: You can —— you can answer. You can
answer the question.

THE WITNESS: OCkay. Yes.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q SO0 you knew that?

A That he had —— yes.

o) So in that sense, even on a 20, you'd have to at
least draw two syringes full or —— two syringes, two 10 cc
syringes, to get all of the mecication out ¢f the bottle at
one time, or you would have tc go back into the bottle with
the same syringe or a new syringe to get the rest of it out,
correct?

A That's correct.
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Q Okay. No question that even though it's not
good practice, you can do that if you use the —— with the
caveat that you do it aseptically as you've described?

A That's correct.

Q Now, with regard to the whole thing that we went
trrough about the -- the publicizing or not publicizing of
safe injection practices or nct safe injections practices, you
-- vou went -- they went throuch —— or Mr. Wright went through
that with you on initially thcse things get published,
cutbreaks and the like get published in journal virology and
the CDC, MMWR, things like that; is that right?

A Correct.

Q And 1s -- was ycur testimony that those are
Jjournals that are not typically read by an anesthesiologist?

A That's correct.

0 Did I understand you, though, that those
reports, even though they don't initially start in the
Jjournels that you would read, eventually end up in those
journals?

A That's correct.

Q And, in fact, did you not say that in the -- the
ARNA, which is what?

A The American Association of Nurse Anesthetists.

0 The AASA, what is that?

A ASA, one A, I'm sorrv.

<
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ASA, I'm sorry.

The American Society of Anesthesiology.
Is that a journal you read or ——

Yes.

—— a soclety you're part of?

- Ol Ol A O

~

It's a society I'm part of and they have one of
the twc most prestigious journals, which is Anesthesiology.

Q Okay. And CDC?

A The CDC.

Q Okay. So at least for —— for you the ASA and
for anesthesia nurses, or maybe they would even subscribe to
-— to that journal. Rut anesthesia-related journals, would
you have access to that information?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. So when —— when you say —- or would vyou
say that it was publicized or well publicized about unsafe
injection practices in those journals?

A Yes, sir.

Q So even though it didn't start off that way, do
you get that information?

A Yes, sir.

Q Any —— any cloak and dagger there that you're
not aware of as far as unsafe injection practices?

MR. SANTACROCE: I'm going to object. Cloak and

dagger.
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THE COURT: Yeah, that's susteained.

MR. STAUDAHER: My wcrds. Bad words. I'm sorry.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q Has this been something that has been known

generally abut safe injection practices for a long time?

A Yes, sir.

o Many vears?

A Yes, sir.

o Is this something you were taught in your
training?

A Yes, sir.

MR. STAUDAHER: Court's indulgence, Your Honor.

THE CCURT: That's fine.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

0 I just have one last thing. You had mentioned
that you believe that there's equal responsibility, and I
think you mentioned something about the practitioners have
responsibility in what they do?

A Yes.

Q Can you explain thet to us, what you meant by
that?

A You say, I'm sorry, equal ——

0 The practitioners, do they have responsibility
in how they do their work with the equipment and supplies that

they have?
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A Yes. Very much so.

0 Is it ultimately up to the practitioner to co
the right thing with the patients?

A Ultimately, it is their responsibility, both in
terms cf —— in terms of outcomes and safety. Ultimately, it
is their responsibility.

| Q And 1n your opinion, 1s safety or cost more of
an important factor?

A Safety always trumps profits and —- and
corporate —— the corporate entity for profit.

MR. STAUDAHER: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All rignt. Ladies and gentlemen, we're
going to go ahead and take —— we're going tc go late tocay.
Is everybody —-

MS. WECKERLY: Actually, Ycur Honor, can we approach

on that?
(Off-record bench conference.)
THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, we're
going to just take a quick —-- about a 10-minute recess.

During the recess you're ——

I know. We're taking -- To back to an earlier point,
Mr. Wright, that you made, we're only human. So we're going
to take a quick 10-minute break.

And ladies and centlemen, during the break you are

reminded that you're not to discuss the case or anything
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relating to the case with each cther or with anyone else.
You're not to read, watch, or listen to any reports of or
commentaries on the case, person, or subject matter relating
to the case. Don't do any kinc of research. Please don't
form or express an cpinion on the trial.

Notepads 1n your cheirs, and follow the bailiff
through the rear door.

And for the iawyers ard the witness, it's going to be
about a 10-minute break. You're not done yet.

It'll not be much loncer, and we have a couple of
Jjuror questions, too.

(Court recesses at 4:58 p.m., until 5:08 p.m.)

THE MARSHAL: Please rise for the presence of the
Jjury.

(Jury reconvenes at 5:08 p.m.)

THE MARSHAL: Tharnk vyvou. You may be seated.

THE COURT: All rignt. Court is now back in session.

And Mr. Wricht, vyou may begin your recross.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Very briefly, Dr. Friedman. I think you just
said for Mr. Staudaher that the safe injection practices were
-— propofol and injection practices —-— as far as you know,
were widely known and wicdely established for the

anesthesiologists, correct?
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A Yes, sir.

O Okay. And is it still your correct testimony in
the civil case, page 116, 117, 118, when you were testifying
for the plaintiffs against the manufacturers?

"Tell me 1f you agree witn the following statement:
Safe injection practices have been well established as well as
widely publicized.

Answer, under oath, "I disagree with that statement."

All right. Again, the question, "Safe injection
practices have been well established. The first part, okay.
They have been kell establishec. Second part, well
publicized. The widely publicized is partly the anesthesia

pecple have not been informed in a lot of what they usually

read.” Correct?
A That's consistent with —-
Q Is that your correct testimony in the civil
case?
A Yes, sir. Very consistent with what I just —-
Q Is that your testimony?
A Yes. 1 said vyes.

Q Thank you. Now, injection practices. Let's
talk about at the time of the events in this case, July 2007.
You just talked about injecticn practices have always remained
the same and well known, correct?

A Yes, sir.
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Q

Okay. July, 2007, time of incident in this

case, "Is it within the standard of care to re-use a single

syringe on a single patient as long as the syringe and the

vial are thrown away?"

A

b= GRS S ©

Q

I'm sorry, sey that zgain?
July —

Yeah, 1 —-

-— 2007.

Seven, ves.

"Is it within the standard of care to re-use a

single syringe on a single patient as long as the syringe and

vial are thrown away?"

A

Q
A
0
A

0

to you agein,

To re-use it~

Re-use.

It is not within the standard of care.

In July 2007, nct today.

You mean in terms of what the CDC said?

No. I mean in terms cf —— I'm going to read it

this is your testimony, sir.

A Right.
0 In July of 2007, "Is it within the standard of
care to re-use a single syringe" —-- re-use —— “on & single

A

Q

patient as long as the syringe and vial are thrown away?"

Can I read the context of it?

No. You —— vyou want to know what your answer
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was”?

"Under these circumstances, yes.

"Question: Okay. So in July, 2007, there were
circumstances where the re-use of a syringe was within the
standard of care, right?

"Answer: With the vial being thrown away, that's
correct.

"Question: And today" —— this was 2009, this
testimony. "today, are there circumstances where re-use of
syringes is within the standard of care?

"Answer: Again, I think practices changed because of
the recent several cases that have occurred because of the
transmission of the hepatitis virus, and I think the standard
cof practice now is to go to a single-use vial, cefinec as one
draw, and throw the vial away and the syringe away anc one
needle.

"Question: So the standard of care has evolved from
July, 2007, to the present with respect to the re-use of
syringes?

"Answer: I think I —— it's hard to put a year on 1it.
I think this has been a evolution between, you know, saylng
exact 2007 or a certain date. What I was trying to say 1s
that scmewhere between 2002 and where we are presently" —-
2009 —— "and where we are presently, with changes in JHACO 1in

terms of what they're coming up with. And again, some of
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those happened in 2004 and 2005. We are seelng a much
stricter interpretation of re-using a syringe a seconc time on
“ a patient. I can't tell you an exact date. I can't tell you
an exact year. This is an evclution that has occurrec.™

"Question: All right. To make it clear" --

MR. STAUDAHER: Your Honor, I'm going To object at
this point. Are we just going to read the whole transcript or
is there & question?

It MR. WRIGHT: I've got one more sentence.
THE COURT: All right. Let him finish.
llBY MR. WRIGHT:

0 Question, "All right. Just tc make it clear,
though, as of today, you believe it would be a violation of

the standard of care to re—-use a syringe in any circumstance,

even if it was only on the same patient?

"Answer: With single-use vial, yes." That's your
testimcny. Okay?

A I understand.

0) That is in —— that's the —— which civil cese was
that? Do you remember?

MR. SANTACROCE: Michael Washington.
BY MR. WRIGHT:
" Q Michael Washington. Now I hear you saying &
different —— testifying differently for the State here in

ft 2013.
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MR. STAUDAHER: Objection.
BY MR. WRIGHT:
0 Is that correct?

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection, Your Honor. That —— it's

THE CQURT: Well, 1f he disagrees, then he can answer

the guestion.
THE WITNESS: I do disagree. 1 don't —-—

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q You don't understand?
A No.
Q You said these —- there was no change in these

practices. I just asked you in July, 2007, I asked you the
questicn, could you do it? You answered no. Now I reac you
your testimony and the answer was yes in July 2007. Dic you

not hear that?

A Can I see —-
@) Yes.
A —— that in context? That's all I want —-- that's

all I want to see right now.
0 You point out if I misread it. Better c¢ive you
your page. What page 1s that?
A That is the 20, 21 -- or 21 is what you have up
here. Or, excuse me, pages 78 to 81.

@) I guess I need 20. Started on page 77. Middle
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A Okay. Let me just —- thank you. Can I have the
F'page before that, please? Were you reading something also
from 2007? Or —

Or this is the —— this is the earliest one vou have,
is this correct? Of the things that you read.

o) That's exactly what I read to you, sir.

A Okay. OCkay.

Q On page —-—
| A No, no. That's fine. Okay. No, I'm — I'm
reading it and I'm —

Q Ckay.

A — I'm understanding this a little bit more.

Just a minute. Yeah, I see.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Your Honor, can I read this out
loud and take it and put it in context or nct?

THE COURT: Ckay. Well, Mr. Wright or Mr. Staudaher
can follow —— follow up.
FI MR. WRIGHT: TI'll let Mr. Staudaher follow up. But
I'1l let you use the pages.

THE COURT: Are you finished with your —-
" MR. WRIGHT: Go ahead, read it.
THE COURT: ©Ch, all right. Read it.
" MR. WRIGHT: I don't —— I don't want to ——

IBY MR. WRIGHT:
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Q Tell me what I misconstrued.

THE COURT: Doctor, you can read the -- whatever part
you want out loud.

THE WITNESS: Okay. How do you want to proceed?
BRY MR. WRICHT:

Q Did I misread it?

A You didn't read it in the context of the six

n

rage What you read was correct. That's correct.

Q Do you want to read the whole thing to the jury?

A If you wish me to.

Q I don't wish you to do anything. I just want to
krow, you tell me, the way I understand your testimony, July,
2007, it was within the standard of care, your words, single
use, single svringe, re-use it, toss both, one patient. And
it was only after, as a result of cases like what happened
here, that the standards evolved and became stricter; is that
correct?

A T think it became stricter years before then.
Coviously ——

Q Did you say that there?

A Can I read this?

Q You want to read the whole thing? Just read the
parts you want to read, and then I'll read what you testified

to in the civil case.

A That's fine. That's fine.
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THE COURT: You can read them out loud.

THE WITNESS: I know. I'm looking --

THE COURT: Oh.

THE WITNESS: —— to try to cut it a little short to
see where 1 should start.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q All I'm interested in is the stancard of care in
July, 2007.

A Okay. "Question: Doctor, before we brcke, you
had mentioned that there are some situations where re-use of a
syringe was not clearly inappropriate. That's at least how I
took your testimony. Are there any situations where a syringe
could be re-used on a single patient and it would be within
the standard of care?

"Answer: No. If a patient was being treatec by an
Anesthesiologist, propofol was drawn from a propofol vial,
injection was made into the patient, could the syringe be
re—used a second time on that patient?

"Answer: Well, this is the difference between the
theorv and the human use. The recommendations now are one
needle, one syringe, one draw, one vial. The reason 1s that
although, again, from a theoretical standpoint, an aseptic
technique, nothing kad should happen in terms of transmission
of viral particles. The reality is when you deal with the

human experience and the potential for human error anc
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cross—examination, that's what the recommendations now
presently are. So I think it is substandard.

"Ouestion: When did the recommendations become not
to re-use a syringe?

"Well, I think that's what" -- answer, "Well, I think
that's what happened progressively is that if you look back,
wnether it's the CDC, whether it's the American Society of
Aresthesia, whether it's the AANA, the Association for Nurse
Anesthetists, especially in 2002, when there were four
cutbreaks that occurred, and those outbreaks have not gone
away, progressively more and more organizations are going to
much stricter interpretations so that these things can't
happen.

"Question: In 2007, July, 2007, was it within the
standard of care to re-use a syringe as long as the syringe
and tne vial of medication were disposed of at the enc of the
treatment of the patient?

"By the time, 2007, when the standard of care" —-
this is the answer —— "in our community, meaning in the Los
Angeles area, was to go Lo not re-using syringes. To say that
there was a federal mandate when you look at even CDC
suggestions before 2007, clearly it made those comments. But
the reality is that the fact it wasn't until approximately
2004, based upcn the incidents of medicines report and then

JCAHC taking a much more active role with medications in
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1 general, it wasn't just unsafe intravenous practices, but

2 medications and medication errors, that they started looking

3 to see if there was a way in which they could significantly

4 cut down on a thing -- anything that had to do with

5 medications. And this is one of those things where definitely
6 safe practices were being breached. Safe intravenous

7 || practices were being breached. And so you see 1t more ana

8 more in the literature in terms of the CDC, FDA, ASA, AARNA.

) "Question: In July, 2007, was 1t within the standarc
10 of care, a violation of the standard of care, to re-use a
11 syringe if the syringe was usec on a single patient and the
12 vial of medication was disposed of at the end of the
13 procedure?

14 "Now you're saying" —-— answer, "Now you're saying
15 something a little different. I don't believe it was below
16 the standard of care.

17 "Question: Tell me how you think those questions

18 were different.

19 "Answer: You said throw the vial ocut. You dicn't

20 say that before.

"Ouestion: I think I did, but that's the

22 difference.”

23 “ Q Keep reading.

z4 A I amn. I am. "Your answer" —— cuestion, "Your

25 “ answer was because you thought that the previous question
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" didn't assume that the vial wculd be thrown away?
i "That is correct." That's my answer.
"OQuestion: Ckay. Sc there are instances where it is
within the standard of care currently to re-use a syringe?
"Answer: No.
"Question: Were there instances in July of Z007
“ where it was in —— where it was within the standard of care to

llre—use a syringe?

"Answer: No. And let's see if we're not connecting
here scmewhere. I think I asked you on July of 2007 whether
it was within the standard of care to re-use a single syringe
Il cn 2 single patient as long as the syringe and the vial were

thrown away.

"Answer: Under those circumstances, yes.

circumstances where re-use of a syringe was within the
l standerd of care, right?

’ "OQuestion: Ckay. Sc in July, 2007, there were
"Answer: With the vial being thrown away; that's

P "Cuestion: And today are the circumstances where

correct.

re-use of syringes is within the standard of care?

i "Answer: Again, I think practice has changec because
l of the recent several cases that have occurred because of the
transmissions of the hepatitis virus, and I think the standarc

of practice now is to go to a single-use vial defined as one
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draw, and throw the vial away, and one syringe and one needle.

"Question: So the standard of care has evolved from
llJuly, 2007, to the present with respect to re-use of syringe?
"I think it's hard tc put a year on it. I think that
llit has been an evolution between, you know, to say an exact
F|ZOO7 or certain date. What I was trying to say 1s that

somewnere between the year 2002 and where we presently are

|
|
|

with changes in JAHCO and in terms of what they're coming up
Iwith, and again, some of those things that happened in 2004

and 2005, we're seeing a much stricter interpretation of

re-using & syringe a second time on a patient. I can't tell
you an exact date. 1 can't tell you an exact year. This is
Ian evolution that has occurred.
l "Question: All right. To make it clear, as of today
you believe it would be a violation of the standard of care to

llre—use a syringe in any circumstance, even if 1t was only on

|

the same patient?

I "Answer: With a single-—use vial, yes.

"Ouestion: As of exactly when the standard of care

changed, you couldn't pinpoint?
"Answer: I could not pinpcint. I could not exactly
l say 2007 or 2006. As I said, it's an evolution from the

2002-'04 cases that occurred around the country that people

were becoming very worried about the transmission of hepatitis

B —— C or B viruses.
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"Ouestion: You are not prepared to say that in July
of 2007 it was a violation of the standard of care to re-use a
syringe on a single patient if the propofol vial was thrown
away?

"Answer: I can tell you that the immecdiate practice
of where I am in Los Angeles County, that was the standard of
practice. I can tell you —- I can't tell you that it was a
national practice. 1 car't tell you that ycu look
specifically —— you lock and specifically say. But there
clearly were recommendations that it would been written for
2007 stating that that's what should be done.

"Question: And in July of 2007, you don't know
whether it was the standarc of care in Clark County, Nevada,
to re-use a syringe on & single patient 1if the vial was thrown
away afterwards?

"Answer: 1 can tell you that the CDC's
recommendation is the national recommendation. That is not a
standard. In other words, I don't think when it comes to safe
intravenous practices, I don't think that this is something
that a country or a city or & state determines that. I think
that the authorities who -- I think the authorities who are
the most knowledgeakble and who have written and made
suggestions, whether it's to physicians in practice or whether
it's through other agencies of the government, including

JAHCC, and they wish to co ahead and set a stringent standard,
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I don't think that it is something that is community. I think
that is nationwide. That is the practice of mecdicine. And
when you say the standard, it is the standard for safe
practice, for safe intravenous practice.

"Ouestion: Do you know what the standard of practice
of CRNA's anesthesiologists who administer anesthesia in Clark
County, Nevada, in July, 2007, was with respect to the re-use
of syringes on single patients?

"Question: Do you know or not?

"Answer: No." And that's what —-

0 Okay.

A — what is there.

Q So what I read to you was accurate, correct?
A In some of the context it was, and in some of

the context, it was something that —-— it started earlier. But

what you read was accurate. What yocu read was accurate.

Q Okay.

A I just wanted tc read ——

Q And before —-—

A -— what was befcre.

Q — and before -- before I read it, 1 asked you

the same question.

A Yes, sir.
Q We started this, yvou wanting to read it all —-
A Yes, sir.
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Q — by me saying in July, 2007, was it within the
standard of care, and you answered no. And then I showed you
your testimony, and the answer's yes. Correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

MR. WRIGHT: No further guestions.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. Sentacroce?

MR. SANTACROCE: I nhave nothing.

THE COURT: Mr. Staudaher?

MR. STAUDAHER: No recirect, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything, any cther juror questions? All
right. There's no further guestZons. Thank you for your
testimony. Please —— I was going tc say don't cdiscuss your
testimeny, but since you're nct here as a percipient witness,
I don't need to say that.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: You are excused at this time.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

MR. STAUDAHER: May 1 walk him out to get his stuff,
Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. STAUDAHER: Thank you.

THE COURT: Shall we cet started with the next

witness?
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MS. WECKERLY: We have a witness, if you want us to
start.

THE COURT: Start.

MS. WECKERLY: Okay.

THE COURT: The next witness 1s whom?

MS. WECKERLY: Joaen Syler.

THE COURT: Ma'am, just right up here next to me, up
these couple of stairs, please. And then just please remain
standing, facing that lacdy right there who'll administer the
ocath to you.

JOAEN SYLER, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. And please
state and spell your name.

THE WITNESS: Joaen Syler, J-O-A-E-N S-Y-L-E-R.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Ms. Weckerly.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. WECKERLY:

Q It's lucky to be the witness that gets called at

Ma'am, how are you enployed?

A As a consultant, an independent consultant.
0 In —— in what area?
A Different areas. I'm an RN. I don't do any

clinical practice anymore. But I get heavily involved in

medical record review and healthcare fraud investigations and
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certified coding issues.

Q And before you worked as a consultant, can you
explain to the members of the Jjury your other employment?

A Prior to becginning as & consultant, I was
emploved at Blue Cross Blue Shield cof Tennessee for nine
years, for a year and & ha.f in the Medicare division as a
supervisor in medical record review, and then into the special
investigations unit where I became a healthcare fraud
investigator, and then sukbsequently became accredited as a
healthcare fraud investicator. And prior to that it was
various hospitals and physician-based settings.

0 And richt row vcu work as a consultant in ——
l!partially in the area of healthcare fraud investigations or
expert testimony?

i

A Yes. Or medicel record auditing. Sometimes

that comes into play.

Q And have vyou testified before in trials as an
expert in healthcare fraud or standards of practice in the
industry and —— and billinc irproprieties?

P A Yes, I have.
I 0 And was that just in Tennessee, or have you

testified in other states?

A I've testified in Tennessee, Iowa, and Florida.
) Okay. In your -— in your -- in all of your
experience, can you —— based cn all of your experience, can
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you tell the ladies and gentlemen of the jury how generally
industry practices in relation to healthcare ability come into
being? How are the practices or the industry standards set?
A The industry standards basically are set by
Medicare, CMS, Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services.
CMS acts &s, like, an umbrella with rules, regulations, and
guidelines. And in most other health insurers, private heaith
insurers will for the most part follow suit with what Medicare
says. Does that answer your question?
Q It does. And do you know why it is that
Medicare is the one that sets the standard, or CMS sets the
standard for the industry?

A Medicare, along with AMA, the American Medical

Association, physician organization, work hand in hand as well

as with some major insurers, such as Blue Cross Blue Shield,
in developing the coding, the codes, the descriptions of those
codes, how to bill those codes, the guidelines for those
codes, and then those, all that informetion, the guidelines,

the codes, are compiled in a book that is published annually

Icalled CPT, Current Procedural Terminology, which 1is

physician-based coding for services and procedures.

Q And in your work as a consultant and then in
your —— at your prior work investigating fraud and —-- and
doing medical auditing, are ycu familiar with the CMS

definition of anesthesia time?
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A Yes, 1 am.

0 And how — how is anesthesia time defined
according to the CMS standard?

A CMS says that anesthesia starts when the
anesthesiz practitioner is in present with the patient and
begins to prepare the patient for anesthesia services. And
then it ends when that anesthesia practitioner is no longer
giving any anesthesia services, which equates to they're no
longer present face to Zace with the patient, and anesthesia
has passed safely the care of that patient to a post-operative
person and place, usually an RN.

O Now, so anesthesia 1s a —— a continuous time of
being in attendance, 1 guess, or face time with a patient from
the start of the procedure until the petient is passed off to
a recovery room personnel’?

A Yes.

Q Now, accorcéing to the industry standards and
guidelines, what if the anesthesia provider has to attend to
the patient in the recovery area; under the guidelines, how is
that supposed to be, one, documented, and two, does that get
to count in the anesthesia time?

A Well, it definitely would need to be documented
well in the medical record. Because it's not very common. In
fact, I would call it somewhat rare in my experience that

anesthesia would have to be —— an anesthesia practitioner

KARR REPORTING, INC.
224

007367




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

24

~

would have to be in attendance, face to face with the patient,
after the procedure ended. Because if something emercent were
to happen with that patient and they were already in the
recovery area, there's a possibility anesthesia practitioner
could immediately come to there, but it's not likely. Because
they're usually already in ancther procedure.

So the recovery area nurse would call the appropriate
person, whether it would be an emergency physician, the
patient's private physician, or the patient's specialist that
maybe had -- that would have done the procedure if that person
was —- that practitioner was not in another procedure, as
well. So it depends on what the situation with the patient
would be as to who you would call. But it's highly unlikely
that it would be anesthesie in my experience.

0 And let's just say it's that rare situation
where it is the actual provider, the person that provided
anesthesia during the procedure, pass the person off to the
patient, off to the recovery room personnel. And for some
reason, you know, 5, 10, minutes later had to be called Pkack
to the patient and was available. How would that be
documented according to industry guidelines?

A It would have tc be documented what the
circumstances were, and that would be documented by the RN.

And then if anesthesia did come back in, anesthesia should

25 " even make reference in their documentation why they were
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called back in, what services the patient needed that
anesthesia would provide to that patient.

Billing-wise, I think it would depend on what the
circumstance was as to whether it was part of the anesthesia
services zlready renderecC, or whether it was something more
significant. For example, if the patient in the recovery area
had a respiratory arrest and anestnesia was available, the
same anesthesia practitioner that had administered anesthesia
to the patient, then the codinc and the billing would be
different, because it would have to do with the emergency
situation, not the anesthesia theat was given during a
procedure.

0 So you can't, like, tack it on to the —- the

procedure time?

A That would be hichly unlikely and in my
experience and in my experience in —— as an RN, as well as the
medical review of the —— of records, many over the years, I've

not ever seen that happen, actually.

Q Okay. How about on —— on the opposite end; what
if you are an anesthesia perscn and for some reason you go out
into a preop area and talk to the patient, then leave the
patient for a few minutes and ¢o do something else, and then
that patient rolls in for their procedure. How —— what's the
standard for how you would calculate that type of time?

A I1f you're talking about, like, a preop
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evaluation ——

Q Yes.

A —— prior to & procedure, that is included in the
base code for the anesthesia service that's going to be given
during the procedure. It's not separately billable item under
CMS, Medicare.

o) Okay. And so that's part -- that's actually
supposed to be included in the —— the base amount that you
bill for the actual procedure?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And while we're on that, can you expliain
to the members of the jury in terms of anesthesia time what
you mean by base units and the other time, how is that —- how
is that, I guess, documented, or explained in units of time?

A The base unit is basically the —-- the code for
the anesthesia. Then you have to add to that the minutes in
anesthesie and those are usually divided into 1l5-minute
increments. And reimbursement usually occurs by so many
dollars per unit.

C And so various medical procedures, I would
assume, depending on how complicated they are, have a set
amount of base units?

A I'm not —— I don't —— unless I'm not
understanding the question, there's not very much set in stone

when it comes to base units, because it can vary per patient,
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just like every person is an individual, then what occurs with
them, it could be totally different than the very next
patient.

Q Okay. And are there —- &re there, like,

standard, to vour knowlecge, units that are associated with

certain procedures or is it -- and then you get to add on the
anesthesia time and those —— in the units, or is it different
than that?

A Are you asking is there common times?

0O Well, the -- the time is 15 minutes, correct?

A Yes.

O Ckay.

A The —— a unit, 15 minutes, vyes.

Q Okay. And I -- mavbe I misunderstood you
earliier, but when I'G asked about if a person —-— if the

anesthesia provider comes out to the preop area and interviews
the patient, then has a -- a bresk from that patient, but
eventually that patient is who they administer the anesthesia
to —— maybe I1'll say that zgain.

How 1is that calculatec? Or —-
They do not add —-
Okay.
—~ minutes for that preop evaluation time.

That's included in the procedure?

- ORI OB

Yes.
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o) Ckay.

A Yes. I'm sorry if I misunderstood you.

Q No, that's okay. I think I confused myself.
But in —— in terms of anesthesia billing and in terms of your
experience in the industry, are you allowed to be billing
anesthesia for two patients at the same times, or are you

allowed to have overlap?

A One practitioner, one anesthesia practitioner?
0 Right.
A No. The only -- if nothing else, it becomes a

quality of care issue. Because if an anesthesia practitioner
is giving anesthesia to one patient, except in unusual
circumstances, they stay with that patient until that
procedure is finished, until that anesthesia is done for that
patient, before they would move on to another patient.

0 So you're not allowed to —-

A Simultaneously —-

Q Right. Uh-huh.

A No. The only time you can do something like
that is an anesthesiologist, an MD, can supervise and go from
room tc room up to four patients if they were CRNAs giving
anesthesia. PRut then that's kind of a different sort of
billing, because they're —— they're doing medical supervision
billing. They're not actually administering anesthesia to

those patients simultaneously.
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Q So, I mean, one anesthesiologist could
theoretically supervise four CRNAs doing different procedures?

A Right. But the anesthesiologist is not giving
the anesthesia.

0 Righz. But a single CRNA can only be billing
cne —— for one patient at & time?

A Absclutely. OCne at a time.

Q Okay. How about is it proper in the industry to
bill for more hours than there are in the work cay?

A Absolutely no. I mean, there's only 24 hours in
a day, a calender day, period. And I've never, in my many
years cof practice, seen anybody work 24 hours a day, much less
more than 24 hcurs a day.

0 Now, in the —— in the industry, I guess within
the last decade, has there been change in how claims are
processed? 1Is it -- is it a paper system or has it —- is it
an electronic system how claims are submitted to the insurers
te pav?

A To my knowledge, all claims submissions now are
done electronically from the provider, whoever the provider
may be, whether it's an anesthesiologist or a
gastroenterologist or a neurologist. It's electronic
submissions. And then the claims are processed
electronically. And then the pay —— the payment, the

reimbursement is electronic, as well.
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Q Okay. And in that —-- in that system, is there,
for the insurers, is there a human being revealing those
claims that are submitted?

A No. The only time a human would review any
claims is when those clailms come in electronically, and they
hit up ageinst the electronic processing system, that system
has built in edits, some insurers have some artificial
intelligence, you know, to review certain points on a clam.
Rut unless some of those things stop that claim for some
reason, meaning there would be something wrong on the face oz
the claim, then it's just going to process right through the
system.

I Q So unless there's something that cets caught by
llthe computer system, the claim gets processed and paic?

A Yes.

it 0 In the —— in the industry, if there's false

Il information on a claim, does the prcvider have to pay or can
they reject the claim?

ll A You mean the insurer?

Q The insurer.
FI
A The insurer can —-— they —— it's normal thet the

P claim would just be rejected and then frequently some notice
" is mailed to the provider that had criginally filed the claim
saying, you know, we rejected this claim. Or there's some

“ notification. It may not be a letter. It may be on the
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explanation of payment that goes with their next monthly
check, you know, on John Doe patient we rejected this claim
because. And then the provider can re-file it with the
||correct information.

C In —— in preparation for your testimony this
evening, did we ask you to review patient recorcs from July
Jithe 25th of 2007 and September the 21st of 20077

A Yes. 1 reviewed approximately 14C medical
records.
i O And in terms of vour review and the anesthesia
l| times cn those two dates, on both of those dates — well, I'1l
just take the first one. On July the 25th of 2007, did you

see overlepping anesthesia times on those recorcs?

A Yes, I did.

o) And did you see billing for more hours than
there was in the day?

A Yes.

Q And on September the 21st of 2007, did you see
Ilthe same thing? Did you see overlapping anesthesia forms
indiceting that the CRNA was apparently attending to more than
cre patient at the same time, or at least that's what the
Il anesthesia form indicated?
A Yes.
Q Yeah. And did you, on that second date,

"September the 21st, see billing or anesthesia records for more
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hours than there was in the day?

A Yes.

MS. WECKERLY: 1I'll pass the witness.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, we'll
go ghead, then, and take our evening recess. We'll reconvene
tomorrow morning at 9:15.

During the recess you are reminded you are not to
discuss the case or anything relating to the case with each
cther cor with anyone else. Ycu're not to read, watch, or
listen to any reports of or commentaries on this case, any
person or subject matter relating to the case. Please con't
do any independent research by way of the Internet or anry
other medium. And please don't form or express an opinion on
the trial.

Notepads in your chairs. And follow the bailiff
through the rear door.

(Jury recesses at 5:54 p.m.)

THE COURT: OCkay. We'll see you back here at ©:15

lltomorrcw.
MR. WRIGHT: I want to put on the record these hours
’lmy client is unable to assist me. I've said this over and
I cver throughout the trial. Yesterday we ended at 6:00 last
night, he does not have the ability, he cannot assist me. I
P do not have the time to work with him. I made the record at

Ithe beginning. We were going to have accommodations. Now it
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has gone to where it's yesterday it was 9:30 —-

THE COURT: Well, yesterday we had —-—

MR. WRIGHT: —- till 6:00 last night.

THE COURT: -- we —- yesterday we ended at 5:30 with
tre jury --

MR. WRIGHT: We were here till 6:00.

THE COURT: And I'm putting it on the record. And
ther there was argument later that tock time. Today we had
you report at 10:30 and I think wound up starting later, which
is why we went later tonight, because we didn't have an early
start today. Other than yesterday, we were ending pretty much
at 5:00 every day. Some days even earlier than 5:00. So if
you're telling me that you need additional time, you can't go
this late ——

MR. WRIGHT: 1I've been telling —-

THE COURT: —-— even on a late start, a late start
today, then fine. Okay. But again, we had a later start for
the lawvers and Dr. Desai and everybody today, which was
10:30. And then we didn't actually —— I know you had to sit
arcund and everything.

MR. WRIGHT: Correct.

THE COURT: BRut I don't think we got started with the
jury because some of them were late. We didn't get started
with the jury till I think 11:00 today. Now, I know he still

has to sit around. But it's not to me as tiring as starting
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-— as being in trial. So, okay, I get it. You're saying you
can't make accommodations or whatever. I would just -- look,
pefore you say, Oh, you've never been a defense attorrey, I'll
say it, I've never been a defense attorney. But isn't some of
the discussing what transpired during the day, isr't that
maybe things that you can save for the weekend?

MR. WRIGHT: No. Because his memory isn't trere. He
doesn't —— he doesn't remember and he mixes up the -- the
witnesses who have testified. And so when I go over the day,
then I'm going to prepare for tomorrow for Dr. Nemec. And
when am I supposed to do it, at 10:00 at night? Hkave him sit
in my office or bring him in early in the morning?

I asked this at the beginning. I put the case law
in. I asked for shortened sessions —-—

THE COURT: OCkay. Well, we've been -—-

MR. WRIGHT: -- and I get —-

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WRIGHT: —- longer sessions.

THE COURT: No, you didn't get longer sessions,
because we started at 11:00 —

MR. WRIGHT: Longer than I requested.

THE COURT: We started at 11:00 today and, you
know ——

MR. WRIGHT: I was here at 10:15 sitting out front.

THE COURT: Ckay. Well, in any event. Going
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forward, I mean, I think we've done everything to accommodate,
not just the Court, but the State, with providing advance
notice of things and doing other things that they're not
required to do. So it's not just the Court that's triec to
provide reasonable accommodations, it's the State. Look, a
lot of today was just repetitive over and over again. Not
blaming anyone due to a lot of things with the witness, Just
reading from depositions and things like that. It took a lot
of time, but really was no new information. It's just the
same thing over and over again.

Sc I don't know how long that's going to take to
synthesize and discuss with ycur client. But, you know, he
was on all day and sayincg not a lot. A lot of it was fightinc
pack and forth and other things. But, you know, be that, I
don't know that that's really something that needs to be gone
over and discussed, the yelling and the fighting and the
joking and the, you know, other things.

So, all right, we'll —- again, I didn't feel like we
were dcing so badly in making the accommodations when we had a
late start today. But you say that we are, and so we'll be
mindful of this going forward. You know, this would be moving
a lot faster if everybody didn't ask the same questions over
and over again. I get it with this last witness was, shall I
say, difficult. But, okay. You kncw, you need more

accommodations and that's fine. But, you know, like I said, I
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mean, the State, in terms of aiding with the accommodations,
they've been really doing & lot here, and I know you're
talking to the Court —-

MR. WRIGHT: I don't disagree.

THE COURT: —— richt now. But, you know, a lot of
this wouldn't have to go as long if it wasn't repetitive. SO
tomorrow is what it is. You know, it's a Friday. So you're
going to have two days to review, prepare, whatever.

Wwhat are you asking me for right now tonight? Part
of the reason we go long is for all of this fighting back and
forth and you constantly interrupting me and then me having to
chastise you for constantly interrupting me and back anc
forth. If we would just engage in tell me what you want, and
then 1'11 tell you what I'm going tc do, then maybe we could
cut these days shorter and, you know, whatever.

So what are you asking me for richt now? 6:04 p.m.
on Thursday, Mr. Wright. What are you asking me for before
LOMOTYCW ——

MR. WRIGHT: Nothing further.

THE COURT: -- at 9:15 when we come back?

MR. WRIGHT: Nothing further. Nothing further.

THE COURT: Ckay.

MR. WRIGHT: Sorry I took the time.

THE COURT: No, I'm not saying that. All I'm saying

is, you know, if you didn't cut me off all the time, then
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maybe a lot of this arguing cculd -- could go faster.

Now, in terms of tomcrrow morning, we're probably not
going to start with the jury right away, because I want to
make two calls or make at least one call to juror employers
and I want to do that in the presence of the lawyers. So,
lawyers, just, you know, get here at 9:15 or whatever, but we
may not start immediately with the jury. So if Dr. Desai's a
few minutes later than that, trat's, vou kncw, fine. But I
want to at least get started by ¢:30 with the jury.

All right, then. That's it for tonight.

(Court recessed for the eveninc et 6:0Z p.m.)
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an expert on ——
THE COURT: Well —-
MR. STAUDAHER: -- whatever he's asked to come in as
an expert for.
H MR. WRIGHT: I cicn't mean use of them.
THE COURT: Well, overruled.
MR. WRIGHT: That's just a figure of speech.

THE COURT: That -- that was the factual basis for

this claim.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Is that correct?

MR. STAUDAHER: Speculation, then, If he knows.

THE COURT: Well, if he kncws.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Well, you know that, don't you?

A let's —— ask it agein.

o Okay. If —— 1if the hepatitis C was spread by
another mechanism, like dirty scopes or improper use of
multi-use saline, or improper use of multi-use lidocaine,
someone was just angry and did something wrong, if those were
the methods by which this outbreek cccurred on two dates here,
then there wouldn't be this lawsuit and cause of action
against the big manufacturers, correct?

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection. Speculation, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ©Oh, overruled. Just -- I mean, it's ——
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the answer's obvious.

THE WITNESS: If that's what the cause was. But
that's not what was found in the investigation.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Did I ask you what was found in the
investigation? You want to hear my last question? What did I
ask you?

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection. Argumentative.

THE COURT: Yeah, that's argument. 1 mean,
badgering.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Would you ——

THE COURT: Argumentative.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q —— answer my question.

A If those were the causes that were found, there
would not be a suit against the manufacturer.

Q Correct. Are you an epidemiologist?

A No, sir.

0 Okay. ©Now, the verdict here in this case could

have an impact on that civil litigaticn?
MR. STAUDAHER: Objection, Your Honor.
MS. WECKERLY: Your Honor ——
THE COURT: That's sustained.

BY MR. WRIGHT:
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Q Could —-

THE COURT: Well, it calls for

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection.

THE COURT: —- speculation and a legal conclusion
and ——

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Well do you —-

THE COURT: -- you know, if we want him here as a --
as a lawyer, a legal expert, then let's —ust let the State,
you know, ask him legal cuestions, toc.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Were you ——

THE COURT: He's not here as & legal expert.

MR. WRIGHT: COkay.

THE COURT: And whether -- what legal impact it could
or may not —— could or could not have is beyond his testimony
as a medical expert. Or —-

MR. WRIGHT: Okay.

THE COURT: -—- as a physician.

MR. WRIGHT: Ckay.

THE COURT: An anesthesiologist. So.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

) You had no conversaticns with Kellebrew or any

cf the other plaintiffs' lawyers you have worked for about

your assessments in this case and why it would be in their
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Il benefit for you to help here, correct?

A That is correct. 1I've had —- that's correct.

Q Okay. You didn't discuss that subject. Did you
discuss with any lawyers, not the district attorney, any

lawyers for which you worked as an expert your testimony here?

A That's correct.
0 No, I said, did you?
A No, I did not.
il 0 Okay. That's what I was asking.
A That's —

| Q Now, I want to talk tc you about propofol.
You've used, like, 1,000 a times a year, right?
h A Yes, sir.

@) Okay. And mainly vou use it —- bear in mind T

don't know the terminology real well, but in the clinic we've
learned that they used hep-locks, what we call here in the

courtroom, and then they inject a dose into the hep-lock, or

the needle and syringe. There's that method, or there's
another IV method. Do you know what I'm distinguishing

between?

" A There are several ways. One is directly into

the hep-lock. Two, you go ahead and you hook an infusion bag

I up; in other words, it can be saline with the injection ports

that lead to the hep-lock, and you can inject propofol through

| it. Three, you can hook up the constant infusion of propofol.
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Those are the three methods.

Q Okay.

A So you can bolus two of them, one throuch the
hep-lock and one through an IV setup hooked to a bag of
saline, or two, constant infusion with an infusion punp.

9] I don't get boluses and alicucts. Are you
talking about a dose?

A A dose.

Q Okay.

A A single dose.

Q So you can dose or constant infusion?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. And our main practice is which of the
three?

A I do — the one I don't do is throuch a
hep-lock. Number one, that's the unsafest of the three. And
the reason 1s, 1is that because if you have unsafe practices,
that's the closest to a patient's bloodstream so that the
transmission can occur into the needle or into the syringe,
that's one.

Two, 1f you get a patient that gets a peculiar
reacticn and you can get an anaphylactic reaction to the
emulsion, you are not that close to being able to give
epinephrine to resuscitate your patient if you Jjust have a

hep-lock, as opposed to if you hook up an infusion bag, you
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have a constant source of being able to resuscitate your
patient easier and put them on drugs to maintain their blood
pressure until that reaction goes away.
Q Well, you don't do hep-locks with doses?
I dose, but not directly into the hep-lock.
Okay. You do mainly infusion?
No. You —-
I'm asking.
There are two ways ——
That's a question.
—— in which you have —-

Which do you ——

- O S CH - © - O S

-—— an IV bag, let's say with saline, you have
.the connection between that and the hep-lock that you can go

, ahead and give. That's an infusion of fluid. You can hook up
ann infusion pump and give propofol that way, or you can go

ahead and give a dose bolus, aliquot, into that infusion, but

it &llcws you to be much further away from the source of the

contamination. It allows you to resus a patient —-—
Q I got that.

-— resuscitation ——

Which do you do —

I do the —

-— the majority of your practice?

= GO S O,

I do both a bolus that goes into a constant ——
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Q Got it.

A — infusion or I do a constant infusion of the
propofol into the port of that hookup to the saline bag.

Q Okay. What —- what do —— if you know, do vou
know what they normally do here as standard in ambulatory
surgical centers for propofol? Do you know in Las Vecas —-

THE COURT: You mean here in Clark County?

THE WITNESS: I do nct know what they co as stancard
cf care in Los Angeles. 1 mean, excuse me, in Las Vecas.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

0 No, I said —-—

A In Las Vegas.

Q I didn't say standard of care, I just meant do
you kncw what they do?

A I don't know what they do ——

Q Okay.
A -— 1n terms of lLas Vegas.
0 Okay. And so if -— I — I quess in California,

hep-locks, just plain hep-liock dose, that's —— they don't do
that in California because it's dangerous?

A I'm saying that ——

Q Is that correct?

A I'm saylng it is —- there's a reason to have a
constant ——

0 I asked you if they do that in California?
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A I don't know of anyone who does it.

Q Okay. You don't know of any ambulatory surgical
| center in california for any type of procedures where propofol
is given for a short procedure where they just use a hep-lock

and a needle and syringe for a dose, correct?

A California is a big state.
Q Is that correct?
A I do not know how everybody practices in the

state cf California.

Q Okay. Whether they ——

A So I —

Q —-— we just have no knowledge whether they do or
h don't in California, correct, sir?
A That is correct.

h Q Okay. Have -- have you told your colleagues or

broadcast in California the dangers of using a hep-lock?

A I have not.

Q Okay. Now, propofol, you're aware that they
h were using -- they, meaning the clinic here in this case, okay
-— what I call 20s and 50s, okay.
h A Yes, sir.
h Q And tell me about using a 50 for multiple
patients when I use proper safe injection practices? I think

ilthe example given by Mr. Staudaher was start with a 50, okay,

open it, gloves, alcohol on top, whatever, all the things you
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do to make for a safe injection practice. Okay. Brand new
needle and syringe, withdraw one, another brand new needle
syringe, two, three, four, five, okay. If it -— if that were
done and then those five needles and syringes were separately
used on -- two on one patient, one on another patient, two on
a third patient, is there any way that could cause the
transmission of hepatitis C?

A If you're asking whether if they have —- they
kept aseptic technique under those circumstances, there
wouldn't have been any transmission of hepatitis C.

Q Okay. And that would be I think you said
theoretically correct?

A No. I said if they had --

Okay.

—-— aseptic technique —-

Q

A

Q Right.
A —— that —

0 My example ——
A

—— there would have been no —— that's what vou

were asking ——

Q Yes.

A —— there would be no transmission ——

Q Okay.

A —-— from a 50 cc vial.

0 And that's true whether it's a multi-dose vial
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or & single-dose vial that says 50 on it, correct?

A Absolutely. It's correct.

Qo Okay.

A If the aseptic technique is there.

o] And you've -— you've indicated that, also for
| Mr. Staudeher, that I could take a 20 propofol if I wanted to
and I could draw up a syringe full of propofol, inject patient
“ I am treating. Patient needs another dose. I could use same
neeale, same syringe, empty the 20 propofol vial, use same
" needle, same syringe, inject the patient. And that there is
no way that's going to cause a transmission of anything, any

" blood-berne pathogen, correct?

A If there's aseptic technique.

o Okay.

A That is correct.

Q And that's true whether it's a 20 cc saline vial

or propcefol wvial, correct?

A That is correct.

Q Is the —- does it make any difference, we've
heard evidence in this case of injecting a patient, drawing up
" cut of a propofol vial, call it first injection, okay, then
I individual practitioner takes the same syringe, takes off the

needle, puts on a new sterile needle, throws away old needle,

and goes back into propofol vial and re-doses the patient.

What's the significance of that?
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A If he uses aseptic technique and he injects it
back into the same patient, there's no significance at all.
There shouldn't be any transmission of any —— of any disease
as long as he uses aseptic technique.

0 Okay. And what does —— I mean, we have heard in
this ccurtroom evidence that I —— I could use the same needle
and syringe to re-dose the same <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>